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From: ALLEN, DANIEL <DANIEL.ALLEN@gwent.police.uk>  
Sent: 10 October 2022 08:46 
To: WWW: Licensing <licensing@caerphilly.gov.uk> 
Cc: Dicks, Annette <dicksa@caerphilly.gov.uk> 
Subject: Rhymney Garage 
 
Morning, 
 
In relation to the Objection from Gwent Police on 14th September 2022, it has been noted that 
Gwent Police stated that “Since the licence has been granted there has been a total of 43 police 
calls to Victoria Road, Rhymney”. This figure is incorrect and Gwent Police would seek to clarify that 
there has been 60 calls/ incidents to Victoria Road in that period up until 14th September 2022.  
The attachment contains figures relating to those calls/incidents since the licence was granted and a 
description of Anti-Social Behaviour categories and headings. I have exhibited this as DA01.  
 
Thanks 
 
Dan 
 

Dan Allen 

 
 
 

 
Cwnstabl Heddlu 7| Police Constable 7 Allen 
Trwyddedu | Licensing 
Canolfan Datrys Problemau (Gorllewin)| Problem Solving Hub (West)  
Heddlu Gwent Police 
Ffôn symudol | Mobile: 07464653993 
E-bost | E-mail: daniel.allen@gwent.pnn.police.uk 
Pencadlys yr Heddlu | Police Headquarters | Croesyceiliog | Cwmbrân | NP44 2XJ 
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Exhibit DA01 
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Incidents 

 
 
 
Crime Related breakdown part A 

 
Crime related breakdown part B 
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To note, Police Generated Recourse relates to – Lost/ found property, messages and duplicates.  
Anti-Social Behaviour may be documented as a crime if the caller is a repeat victim or if the incident 
results in threatening, insulting or abusive words or behaviour. This would show as  a crime on the 
attachment/ figures and not Anti-Social Behaviour.  

There are three main categories for antisocial behaviour, depending on how many people 
are affected: 

 Personal antisocial behaviour is when a person targets a specific individual or group. 

 Nuisance antisocial behaviour is when a person causes trouble, annoyance or 
suffering to a community. 

 Environmental antisocial behaviour is when a person’s actions affect the wider 
environment, such as public spaces or buildings. 

Under these main headings antisocial behaviour falls into one of 13 different types: 

1. Vehicle abandoned: This covers vehicles that appear to have been left by their 
owner, rather than stolen and abandoned. It includes scrap or ‘end of life’ vehicles 
and those damaged at the scene of a road traffic collision that have been abandoned 

and aren’t awaiting recovery. 
2. Vehicle nuisance or inappropriate use: This relates to vehicles being used in acts 

such as street cruising (driving up and down the street causing annoyance and 
bothering other road users), vehicle convoys and riding or driving on land other than 

a road. It also covers the misuse of go-peds, motorised skateboards and electric-
propelled cycles, and the unlicensed dealing of vehicles where a person has two or 

more vehicles on the same road within 500 metres of each other. 
3. Rowdy or inconsiderate behaviour: This refers to general nuisance behaviour in a 

public place or a place to which the public have access, such as private clubs. It does 
not include domestic-related behaviour, harassment or public disorder which should 
be reported as crimes. 

4. Rowdy or nuisance neighbours: This covers any rowdy behaviour or general 
nuisance caused by neighbours, including boundary and parking disputes. It also 
covers noise nuisance from parties or playing loud music. 

5. Littering or drugs paraphernalia: This includes fly posting and discarding litter, 

rubbish or drugs paraphernalia in any public place. 
6. Animal problems: This covers any situation where animals are creating a nuisance or 

people’s behaviour associated with the use of animals is deemed as antisocial. It 
includes uncontrolled animals, stray dogs, barking, fouling and intimidation by an 

animal. 
7. Trespassing: This is any situation in which people have entered land, water or 

premises without lawful authority or permission. It ranges from taking an 
unauthorised shortcut through a garden to setting up unauthorised campsites. 

8. Nuisance calls: This covers any type of communication by phone that causes anxiety 
and annoyance, including silent calls and intrusive ‘cold calling’ from businesses. It 

does not cover indecent, threatening or offensive behaviour which should be 
reported as crimes. 
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9. Street drinking: This relates to unlicensed drinking in public spaces, where the 
behaviour of the persons involved is deemed as antisocial. It also covers unplanned 

and spontaneous parties which encroach on the street. 
10. Prostitution-related activity: This relates to any activity involving prostitution such 

as loitering, displaying cards or promoting prostitution. It may also refer to activities 
in and around a brothel that impact on local residents. It does not include ‘kerb-

crawling’ which should be reported as a crime. 
11. Nuisance noise: This relates to all incidents of noise nuisance that do not involve 

neighbours (see ‘Nuisance neighbours’ above). 
12. Begging: This covers anyone begging or asking for charitable donations in a public 

place, or encouraging a child to do so, without a license. Unlicensed ticket sellers at 
or near public transport hubs may also fall into this category. 

13. Misuse of fireworks: This will include the inappropriate use of fireworks, the 
unlawful sale or possession of fireworks and noise created by fireworks. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


